
Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Agenda 

March 2, 2023 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Roll Call
B. Adoption of Agenda

2. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office fixed price contract
B. MAWCC discussion
C. Nomination – I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live (Attachment #1)

D. Shallowford Foundation program grants

3. Items Requiring Action at Briefing
A. Ordinance 2023-010 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – To send four Council Members

to CityVision 2023 - $4,924 (Attachment #2)

4. Old Business
A. Resolution 2023-013– Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office Flock camera authorization (Attachment #3)

5. Administrative Reports
A. Manager

i. Potential budget ordinance revision
ii. Landscaping contract update
iii. BAC update

B. Clerk
i. CityVision – April 25-27 – Concord

C. Public Works Director
i. Wildlife control

D. Assistant Town Manager/Planning Director
i. Gateway project update
ii. CMAQ – Shallowford Road sidewalk request update

6. Tentative Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on March 9, 2023
A. Consent Agenda

i. Resolution 2023-014– Financial statements for the seven months ended January 31, 2023 –
(Attachment #4)

ii. Approval of Council Retreat Minutes – January 27-28, 2023 (Attachment #5)

iii. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – February 2, 2023 (Attachment #6)

iv. Approval of Special Called Meeting Minutes – February 21, 2023 (Attachment #7)

v. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – February 21, 2023
vi. Resolution 2023-015 – Accept Resignation of Genevieve Athens – Lewisville Beautification

Committee (Attachment #8)

B. Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations
i. Presentations

a. Sheriff’s Office



 

 

 
C. Public Hearings 

i. Willow Run MSD charter change  
a. Staff presentation 
b. Public hearing 
c. Council discussion 
d. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-005 (Attachment #9) 

D. Appointment(s)  
i. Boards 

a. Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development (Appoint 2) 
b. Planning (Appoint 2) 
c. Willow Run Municipal Service District 

i. Area 5 (Appoint 1) 
ii. At-Large (Appoint 1) 

d. Zoning Board of Adjustments  
i. Permanent Member (Appoint 3) 

ii. Alternate Member (Appoint 1) 
ii. Committees 

a. Public Art Advisory (Appoint 5) 
b. Public Safety Advisory  

i. Appointment Order 2023-003 – Veronica Thomas 
E. Old Business  

i. Mediated settlement agreement update 
F. New Business 

i. Resolution 2023-016 – Authorizing Town Manager to sign Lewisville-Vienna/Robinhood 
Road Roundabout Supplemental Agreement - $1,225,188 (Attachment #10) 

ii. Resolution 2023-017 – Authorizing Town Manager to sign Great Wagon Road rights-of-way 
and related documents (Attachment #11) 

 
7. For the Good of the Order 

A. NCLM report – Mayor Horn 
 

8. Adjournment 



Nomination Form
for

I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is A Great Place to Live

Purpose of the Award

The “I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is A Great Place to Live” award is presented to selected
individuals who are making Lewisville a great place to live.  An individual may be nominated for
any reason as long as it can be clearly demonstrated that their activities or other contributions have
improved the quality of life for residents or in the town in general.  

Nominations should be submitted to staff who will validate the nominee’s information and present
the information to Council at its next scheduled briefing.  If selected to receive the award, the
nominee and their nominator will be recognized at a regularly scheduled meeting of the Lewisville
Town Council or other official town meeting or event.

Nomination Information (This form may be updated on-line.)

Date: 

Nominator Information
Name of Nominator: 

Contact telephone number: 

Contact email: 

Nominee Information
Name of Nominee:  

Address of Nominee: 

Telephone Number of Nominee: 

Contact email: 

Reason for the Nomination: 

Form may be returned via email to: townclerk@lewisvillenc.net or mailed to: Town Clerk, PO Box
547, Lewisville, NC 27023.
FOR OFFICE USE BELOW:
Date received:                       Presented to Council:                         Approval Date:  

Attachment #1

mailto:townclerk@lewisvillenc.net


STAFF REPORT 

ITEM: ORDINANCE 2023-011 

SUBJECT: BUDGET AMENDMENT TO SEND (4) TOWN COUNCIL 
MEMBERS TO 2023 CITYVISION IN CONCORD, NC 

PREPARED BY: PAM ORRELL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

DATE SUBMITTED: 3/2/2023 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Four Town Council members have expressed an interest in attending 2023 CityVision in Concord, NC. The estimated 
cost to send one council member, which includes registration, 3 nights in a hotel, mileage reimbursement, and 
meals is $1,231. A budget amendment is needed to cover the cost of sending (4) Council members which amounts 
to an estimated cost of $4,924. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION AND REQUESTED ACTION :  

Staff is requesting that Council approve Ordinance 2023-011 in the amount of $4,924 to send (4) Town Council 
members to 2023 CityVision in Concord, NC. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The budget amendment is in the amount of $4,924 and is to be appropriated out of General Fund Balance. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2023-011 - Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 – To send (4) Town Council members to 2023 
CityVision in Concord, NC. 

Attachment #2



CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT CODE ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

10-00-4110-3100

Governing Body - Travel and 

Training 4,924.00$   10-00-3990-9000

General Fund - Fund Balance 

Appropriated 4,924.00$   

4,924.00$   4,924.00$   

EXPLANATION: To send 4 Town Council members to 2023 CityVision in Concord, NC.

RECOMMENDED BY:  Pam Orrell, Town Finance Director

Approved and effective upon adoption this the 2nd day of March  2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

ATTEST:

Mike Horn, Mayor

Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk

Budget Amendment # 25

Pam Orrell, Finance Officer 

TOWN OF LEWISVILLE

Budget Amendment Ordinance 2023-011

Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001

FINANCE DEPARTMENT USE ONLY

DRAFT



RESOLUTION 2023-013 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AUTHORIZATION OF FLOCK SAFETY CAMERA PLACEMENT 

WHEREAS, the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office utilizes Flock Safety cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office has requested to place Flock Safety cameras on 
Town property or rights-of-way.   

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL authorizes the Town Manager to work 
with the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office on the placement of Flock Safety cameras on Town 
property or rights-of-way. 

Adopted this the 9th day of March 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #3



DRAFT

Attachment #4



DRAFT



DRAFT



DRAFT



Lewisville Town Council 
Council Retreat Minutes 

January 27, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
January 28, 2023 – 9:00 AM 

Mary Alice Warren Community Center – Magnolia Room 

1. Call to Order
A. Mayor Horn opened the Council retreat at 6:00 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor

Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler, David
Smitherman, and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Finance Director
Pam Orrell, and Town Clerk Dora Moore.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Council Member Welch moved to approve the agenda. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved unanimously.

2. Introduction
A. Discussion of retreat activities – Manager Ayers explained the format and flow of the Council

retreat.  Council Members were encouraged to share their individual items of importance.  Some
items mentioned were operational and will be followed up on at a future time.

B. Review of topics – Manager Ayers quickly highlighted the topics of discussion for the retreat.

3. Policies
A. Use of public property – Council and staff discussed developed, undeveloped and future

properties owned by the Town.  Manager Ayers shared maps showing the location of Town-
owned properties.  (Property map is attached to the minutes.)

B. Limited-service government – Manager Ayers explained what it means to be a limited-service
government.  The potential for a future public works facility was discussed.  Service delivery
framework and contracting was also discussed distinguishing self-performed work, contracting
with private firms, contracting with public entities and public safety in the community.

Break 7:03 PM to 7:17 PM. 

i. Future service requests
a. Leaf & limb service – Additional research related to this service will be done this year.

Break 8:03 PM to 8:11 PM. 

b. Recreation expansion
1. Dog park – Additional research will be done related to a potential dog park this year.
2. Recreation programs – Discussion related to outdoor recreational programs was

postponed to a future date.

C. Sustainability – Advocacy and operations – Consensus was given for evaluating sustainability
options for Town facilities in the future.  (Resolution 2021051 is attached to the minutes.)

D. Governance
i. Terms for members of boards & committees – Consensus was given to eliminate term limits

for boards and committees. 
ii. Terms for elected officials – Discussion of this topic was held for a future date.

4. For the Good of the Order – No items.

Attachment #5



Lewisville Town Council 
Council Retreat Minutes 

January 27, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
January 28, 2023 – 9:00 AM 

Mary Alice Warren Community Center – Magnolia Room 
 

5. Recess – Meeting was recessed at 9:08 PM to reconvene at 9:00 AM on January 28, 2023.  
 
6. Call to Order - Mayor Horn reconvened the Council retreat at 9:04 AM.  In attendance were Mayor 

Mike Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin, Melissa Hunt, 
Ken Sadler, David Smitherman, and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, 
Finance Director Pam Orrell, and Town Clerk Dora Moore. 

 
7. Projects – A great deal of information, discussion and suggestions were given during this portion 

related to current and proposed facilities and infrastructure projects, current and proposed 
organizational projects, and planning activities such as the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, Capital 
Improvement Plan, etc. Manager Ayers also explained the different phases of projects including 
planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance.  (A map of town project locations is attached 

to the minutes.) 
 

Break 10:08 AM to 10:20 AM.  
 

8. Programs 
A. Parks, Recreation and Cultural Development – The success and vision of special events at Town 

recreational facilities was discussed.  Potential programming and activities as well as rentals for 
the community centers also discussed.   Council and staff shared several suggestions on how to 
enhance the Town’s current outdoor recreational opportunities.  

B. Municipal services - The current scope of work as well as future service and program requests 
was discussed. 

C. Community engagement – A great deal of information, discussion and suggestions were given 
on how to enhance community engagement, public participation, and outreach to stakeholders.   

 
Break 11:45 AM to 12:21 PM.  

 
9. People – Council and staff discussed how the governing body, appointed board and committee 

members and staffing is an important part of what makes Lewisville unique.  A great deal of discussion 
and suggestions were share given on how to enhance these areas.  

 
10. For the Good of the Order 

 
11. Adjournment – Having no other business to discuss, Council Member Smitherman moved to adjourn 

the meeting at 2:01 PM.  Council Member Welch seconded the motion and motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 



Lewisville Town Council 
Briefing and Action Meeting Minutes 

February 2, 2023 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 2nd Floor Conference Room 

6510 Shallowford Road 

1. Call to Order:
A. Mayor Horn opened the meeting at 6:30 PM.  In attendance were Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro

Tem Jeanne Marie Foster and Council Members Fred Franklin (remote), Melissa Hunt, Ken Sadler
(remote), and Jane Welch.  Also attending were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town
Manager/Planning Director Stacy Tolbert, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Clerk Dora Moore,
Public Works Director Jon Hanna, and Attorney Elliot Fus.  Council Member David Smitherman
was absent.

B. Adoption of Agenda – Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to approve the agenda as amended to
include removal of item 7(F)(vi) to amend the Willow Run Municipal Service District charter and
add Resolution 2023-009 to set a public hearing to amend the Willow Run Municipal Service
District charter. The motion was seconded by Council Member Welch and approved
unanimously.

2. Introductions, Recognitions and Presentations for February 2, 2023 – None

3. Items Requiring Council Direction
A. Nomination – I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place to Live – Mayor Horn shared his

nomination request for Tim Lasley to receive the I’m One of the Reasons Lewisville is a Great Place
to Live award.  Council consensus was to give this award to Mr. Lasley at the February 9 meeting.
(Nomination form is herein incorporated into the minutes.)

B. Winston-Salem/Forsyth County facility use request – Council consensus was to add this to the
February 9 agenda under New Business. 

C. West Forsyth Preschool facility exemption request – Council consensus was to add this to the
February 9 agenda under New Business. 

D. Indo US Cultural Association facility exempt request – Council consensus was to add this to the
February 9 agenda under New Business and to request the organization to direct their mission
to the Mary Alice Warren Community Center’s mission statement.

4. Items Requiring Action at Briefing – None

5. Old Business – None

6. Administrative Reports
A. Manager

i. Public Works Director – Manager Ayers introduced Jon Hanna as the Town’s new Public Works
Director.

ii. Proposed 2023 budget calendar revision – Proposed revisions to the 2023 budget calendar will
be added to the February 9 agenda. 

B. Clerk
i. Town & State Dinner - February 22, 5 PM, Raleigh Convention Center – Let Mrs. Moore know

by February 1 if you would like to attend.
ii. CityVision – April 25-27 – Concord

Attachment #6



 

       

iii. Blood Drive – May 17, 1:00-5:30 PM, MAWCC      
 

7. Agenda Items for Regular Meeting on February 9, 2023 
A. Tentative Agenda 

i. Consent Agenda 
a. Resolution 2023-006 – Financial statements for the six months ended December 31, 2022 
b. Approval of Called Meeting Minutes – December 29, 2022 
c. Approval of Closed Session Minutes – December 29, 2022 
d. Approval of Agenda Briefing Minutes – January 5, 2023 
e. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2023 

ii.  Introductions, Recognitions, Presentations and/or Proclamations 
a. Presentations 

1. Sheriff’s office 
iii. Appointment(s) 

a. Appointment Order 2023-001 – Christi Ritter – Lewisville Beautification Committee 
b. Appointment Order 2023-002 – Matthew O’Connor – Public Safety Advisory Committee 

iv. Public Hearings  
a. L-103 – Conditional district rezoning request - 7.45 acres off future extension of Great 

Wagon Road (PIN 5875-87-6070) from RS-20 to RM-8-C by Luke Dickey; Stimmel 
Associates, PA 
1. Staff presentation 
2. Public hearing 
3. Council discussion 
4. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-005 

A. Mrs. Tolbert shared the proposed site plan for townhomes on this property 
noting access will be off the future Great Wagon Road.  The plan includes a 
community space and sidewalks.  The project is reliant upon construction of the 
Great Wagon Road and water line.  There is a 2-year sunset rule on plans.  The 
developer may be able to start the construction without completing and pulling 
permits qualifies. Mrs. Tolbert shared comparisons of the comprehensive plans 
from 1997 to current showing townhomes as a possible use on the property.  

b. L-105 – Conditional district rezoning request - 1138 Lewisville-Clemmons Road from RS-
9-C to RM-5-C by Ron Davis with Allegro Investment Properties, LLC   
1. Staff presentation 
2. Public hearing 
3. Council discussion 
4. Consideration of Ordinance 2023-006 

A. Mrs. Tolbert explained the property is located on Lewisville-Clemmons Road 
behind Kaplan Industries and Fountainbrook.  The property was rezoned a 
couple years ago.  This request is for 60 twin homes and 2 residential homes, 
which are allowed in RM-5.  NCDOT is requiring a turn lane on Lewisville-
Clemmons Road.  

i. Old Business 
ii. New Business 

a. Ordinance 2023-007 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001 - Increase community 
policing  contract for mid-year salary raises and possible inflationary overages in other 
items - $60,166 



 

       

1. Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office (FCSO) gave mid-year raises to officers and other 
overages are expected with the community policing contract.  Mrs. Orrell shared the 
fourth quarter true up is typically in September, too late for a budget amendment 
and negatively affects the audit.  

2. A fixed contract with FCSO was discussed. 
b. Ordinance 2023-008 – Amending Budget Ordinance 2022-001- Increase right-of-way 

maintenance in Powell Bill - $20,000 
c. Resolution 2023-007– Awarding contract for asphalt patch on Tullyries Lane - $10,960 
d. Resolution 2023-008– Awarding contract for sidewalk repairs - $13,620 
e. Ordinance 2023-009 – Amending Planning Board and Zoning Board of Adjustments 

charter 
f. Resolution 2023-009 – Scheduling public hearing for Willow Run Municipal Service District 

charter amendment 
1. In order to eliminate term limits in the Willow Run Municipal Service District charter, 

a public hearing must first be held.  The public hearing will be March 9, 2023. 
 

v. For the Good of the Order 
a. It was noted that Ryan Reedy will be moving his photography business online and will be renting 

out the building on Lewisville-Vienna Road. 
b. Council Member Hunt inquired about the tree removals in the neighborhood on Dole Road.  Mrs. 

Tolbert shared that the second phase of the development has begun. 
c. Council Member Hunt expressed concern about speeding on Dole Road and noted that she has 

requested the Forsyth County Sheriff’s Office to monitor.  
 

vi. Adjournment – Council Member Hunt moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:42 PM.  The motion was 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Foster and approved unanimously.  

 
 
 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:       Mike Horn, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 
 



Lewisville Town Council 
Special Meeting Minutes 

February 21, 2023 – 6:30 PM 
Lewisville Town Hall 1st Floor Conference Room - 6510 Shallowford Road 

Mayor Horn opened the special called meeting on February 21, 2023 at 6:35PM.  In attendance were 
Mayor Mike Horn, Mayor Pro Tem Jeanne Marie Foster, and Council Members Fred Franklin and Melissa 
Hunt.  Also in attendance were Town Manager James Ayers, Assistant Town Manager/Planner Stacy 
Tolbert, Town Clerk Dora Moore, Finance Director Pam Orrell, Town Attorney Bowen Houff, Attorney Elliot 
Fus, and Attorney Andy Santaniello.  Council Members Jane Welch and David Smitherman were absent. 

Mayor Pro Tem Foster moved to enter into closed session related to the attorney-client privilege pursuant 
to NCGS 143-318.11(a)(3) at 6:36 PM.  The motion was seconded by Council Member Hunt and approved 
unanimously.  

Council Member Ken Sadler arrived at 6:47 PM. 

Council returned to open session at 8:20 PM. 

Having no business to discuss, Council Member Sadler made a motion to adjourn at 8:20 PM. The motion 
was seconded by Council Member Franklin and approved unanimously. 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk DRAFT

Attachment #7



RESOLUTION 2023-015 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
ACCEPTING RESIGNATION OF GENEVIEVE ATHENS 

FROM THE LEWISVILLE BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

WHEREAS, the Town of Lewisville has received notification from Genevieve Athens via email of her 
resignation from the Lewisville Beautification Committee; and, 

WHEREAS, the Lewisville Beautification Committee appreciates the dedicated work of committee 
member Genevieve Athens.  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL accepts the resignation of 
Genevieve Athens from the Lewisville Beautification Committee. 

Resolved and effective upon adoption this the 9th day of March 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #8



Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

1 

ORDINANCE 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 
THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL ORDAINS THAT: 

1. Chapter 39 (Municipal Service Districts) of the Lewisville Town Code is amended to eliminate term
limits.

Adopted this the 9th day of February 2023. 

_______________________________ 
ATTEST:  Mike Horn, Mayor 

___________________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

DRAFT

Attachment #9



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

2 

Chapter 39 
Municipal Service Districts 

Section 39-1 Willow Run Municipal Service District 

A. Definitions (as pertains to Chapter 39 of the Lewisville Town Code):

1. Authorization refers to approving a capital project or acquisition.
2. Appropriation making revenues or financing available for expenditure.
3. Public Dam refers to the dams located in the Runnymede Subdivision.
4. Public Funds are funds collected and expended for public purposes which must first be

appropriated by the local government governing body.

B. Purpose: The purpose of the Willow Run Municipal Service District is to maintain the lakes and
dams located within the Runnymede subdivision for the purpose of maintaining the area water
resources development project and permitting Municipal Service District resident use of the lakes
for recreational and sporting purposes.

C. Establishment:

1. Pursuant to Resolution 2002046, the Town Council establishes the Willow Run Municipal
Service District, as described therein, upon its majority vote in accordance with its
established procedures and North Carolina General Statutes.

2. If the conditions set forth in Chapter 39, Section C.3. are met, then the Town shall acquire
from the Runnymede Acres Association, Incorporated properties recorded at the Forsyth
County Office of Register of Deeds and the Forsyth County Tax Office as control lot
4407004K and subordinate lot 4407006F, control lot 4471303, control lot 4471302, and
control lot 4471304, (the “Lakes and Dam Property”) provided, however, if the conditions
are not met within one (1) year of the date of passage of this chapter, then the Service
District shall be abolished.

3. Prior to acquiring the Lakes and Dam Property, the Town shall undertake the following
due diligence which shall yield results satisfactory to the Town:

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

3 

a. Obtain a Survey of Lakes and Dam Property;

b. Obtain a Phase I Environmental Report;

c. Acquire sufficient evidence to demonstrate that the Association has the authority
to convey the Lakes and Dam Property and carry out any additional conditions;
and

d. Obtain any other investigations deemed to be in the best interests of the Town
including, without limitation, an investigation of the integrity of the dams.

4. Should the Town Council abolish the Willow Run Municipal Service District and vote to
abandon the related Town of Lewisville properties the properties shall revert to the
existing or established homeowners’ association.

a. If the Town determines that the conditions of section C.3. have not been met then
the Town Council may abolish the Municipal Service District at its discretion.

b. Action to abolish the district at any time after the acquisition of the lakes and
dams properties by the Town may commence as follows:

(1) Town Council may pass a resolution of intent to abolish the district with
such resolution being passed at least six months prior to the date of
abolishment.

(2) Municipal Service District Advisory Board may recommend to the Town
Council a resolution of abolishment for Town Council’s consideration.

(3) The staff may prepare a report which shows that the Willow Run
Municipal Service District is no longer needed to meet the needs of the
district property owners.  The report shall be submitted to the advisory
board for their recommendation and forwarded to the Town Council who
may request, based on the report and board recommendation, a
resolution of intent be prepared and presented at the next regularly
scheduled meeting of the Town Council.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

4 

(4) Property owners may petition for abolishment of the district.  Such
petition shall be considered sufficient provided 65% or more of the
property owners state their desire for abolishment.  Upon submission
of a sufficient petition the town staff shall prepare a report to the
advisory board who shall review and make a recommendation to the
Town Council.  Upon receipt of the petition, report, and
recommendation the Town Council may request a resolution of intent be
prepared and presented at the next regularly scheduled meeting of the
Town Council,

c. The resolution of intent to abolish the district:

(1) The resolution of intent shall state the intended date of abolishment,
which shall not be less than six months prior to the abolishment date.

(2) The Town Council shall cause a notice of passage of the resolution of
intent to be published in a daily newspaper having general circulation in
the county no less than 14 days after passage of the resolution.

d. Final actions to abolish the district:

(1) Public hearing required in accordance with paragraph J. (Modification) of
this chapter.

e. Should the Willow Run Municipal Service District, at the time of abolishment, be
in a deficit (debit) fund balance, abolishment of the district and abandonment of
the properties shall be deferred until such time that the fund is no longer in a
deficit status.

5. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, the Town may, in its discretion, choose to
require transfer of the dam property only.

D. Advisory Board:

1. Except for this initial interim advisory board named by the Town at the time of passage of

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

5 

this ordinance, the Town Council shall thereafter appoint an advisory board as follows: 

a. Board membership shall be seven members:

(1) Five members shall be one member each representing five
representation districts from within the municipal service district.

(2) Two members shall be at-large from within the municipal service district.
(3) Board members shall be residents and property owners of the

representation district represented.
(4) The Town Manager shall serve as an ex officio member of the board who

shall not be permitted to make or second motions or vote on any matter
before the board.

b. Board vacancies shall be advertised for appointment and applicants may be
recommended by the Willow Run Homeowners’ Association.

c. Board members shall serve three-year terms except that the first board shall have
members appointed as follows:

(1) Three members shall be appointed for three-year terms.
(2) Two members shall be appointed for two-year terms.
(3) Two members shall be appointed for one-year terms.

d. Subsequent appointments shall be for three-year terms.
e. Appointments shall commence on January 1 and expire December 31.

(1) In 2006, Council determined that the terms should commence on April 1
and end on March 31 rather than December 31, and extended all terms
of then serving members from the date their terms would have expired
to the next occurring March 31.

(2) Terms in effect as of the date of adoption of this ordinance shall be
extended to the next occurring March 31.

f. Board members shall serve without compensation.
g. Board members shall be limited to a maximum of five consecutive termsmay

serve unlimited terms.
h. The Town Council shall have the authority to remove board members for cause.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

6 

i. Board members may resign their appointment at any time provided the Town
Council is given a 30 day notice of resignation and Town Council shall appoint new
members to complete existing terms.

j. Board Officers:

(1) The board shall elect, from among themselves, a chairperson and a vice
chairperson.

(2) Board officers shall be elected at the first scheduled meeting after April 1
following the annual appointment of new members.

(3) The chairperson shall reside over meetings.
(4) The vice chairperson shall reside over meetings in the absence of the

chairperson.
(5) Should the chairperson be unable to continue to perform the duties of

chairperson the vice chairperson shall assume the duties of the
chairperson and the board shall elect a new vice chairperson.

2. Representation Districts:

a. There shall be five representation districts as follows:

(1) Willow Run Representation District One.
(a) Control lot properties included:

(i) Ashfield Court lots (Block 4471) 034, 035, 036, and 037.
(ii) Ashfield Drive lots (Block 4471) 029, 030, 031, 032, and

033.
(iii) Barnstable Road lots (Block 4471) 087, 088, 089, 090,

091, 092, 093, 094, 095, 096A, and 096B.
(iv) Chesterfield Road lots (Block 4405) 017L and 612, (Block

4471) 044, 045, 046, 047, 048, 049, and 050.
(v) Falmouth Drive lots (Block 4471) 019 and 038.
(vi) Harwick Court lot 4471022.
(vii) Marblehead Road lots (Block 4471) 039, 040, 041, 042,

and 043.
(viii) Pinehurst Drive lot 4471086.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

7 

(ix) South Marblehead Road lots (Block 4471) 098A, 098B,
100A, 100B, 101A, 103, 104, 105B, 106, 107, 108, 109,
and 110.

(x) Styers Ferry Road lot 4471018.

(b) Initial appointment shall be for three-year term.

(2) Willow Run Representation District Two:

(a) Control lot properties included:

(i) Ashfield Drive lots (Block 4471) 021, 025A, and 025B.
(ii) Chesterfield Road lots Block 4407004R, (Block 4471) 012,

124, and 125.
(iii) Desmond Drive lots (Block 4471) 026, 027, and 028.
(iv) Falmouth Drive lots (Block 4471) 017 and 020.
(v) Harwick Court lots (Block 4471) 023 and 024.
(vi) Marblehead Road lots (Block 4471) 013, 014, 015, and

016.
(vii) South Marblehead Road lots Block 4407004M, (Block

4407A) 001 and 024A, (Block 4471) 111, 112, 113, 114,
115, 116A, 116B, 118, 119, 120, 121, 122, and 123.

(viii) Woodford Road lots (Block 4407A) 002, 003, 004, 011,
012, 013, 014, 015, 016A, 016B, 019, 020, 021, and 022.

(ix) Yarmouth Lane lots (4407A) 005, 006, 007, 008, 009, and
010.Initial appointment shall be for a two-year term.

(b) Initial appointment shall be for a three-year term.

(3) Willow Run Representation District Three:

(a) Control lot properties included:

(i) Barnstable Road lots (Block 4471) 077, 078, 079, 080,

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

8 

081, 082, 083, 084, and 085. 
(ii) Buckey Court lots (Block 4405B) 017P, 065, and 202.
(iii) Chesterfield Road lots (Block 4471) 051, 074, 075, and

076.
(iv) Ellison Creek Road lots (Block 4405B) 049, 050, 066, and

067.
(v) Pinehurst Drive lots (Block 4471) 052, 053, 054, 055, 056,

057, 058, 059, 060, 061, 062, 063, 064, 065, 066, 067,
068, 069, 070, 071, 072, and 073.

(vi) Willowmede Drive lots (Block 4405B) 033, 034, 035, 047,
048, 071A, 071B, 075, 076, 201, and 203.

(b) Initial appointment shall be for a one-year term.

(4) Willow Run Representation District Four:

(a) Control lot properties included:

(i) Belhaven Court lots (Block 4405) 022E and 022M, (Block
4405C) 001, 002, 003, 004, 005, 006, 007, 008, 009, 010,
012A, 012B, 013, 014, 016, 017, 018, 019, and 020.

(ii) Chesterfield Road lot 4405C021.
(iii) Ellison Creek Road lots (Block 4405B) 099, 100, 110, 111,

112, and 113.
(iv) Homewood Drive lots (Block 4405B) 003, 004, 005, 006,

007, 008, 009, 010, 092, 093, 094, 095, 096, 097, and 098.
(v) Merry Hill Court lots (Block 4405B) 101, 102, 103, 104,

105, 106, 108A, 108D, and 109.

(b) Initial appointment shall be for a three-year term.

(5) Willow Run Representation District Five:

(a) Control lot properties included:

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

9 

(i) Ellison Creek Road lots (Block 4405B) 013, 014, 015, 016,
017, 018, 019, 020, 022B, 028A, 028B, 030, 031, 032, and
302.

(ii) Homewood Drive lot 4405B091.
(iii) Kings Tree Road lots (Block 4405B) 001, 002, 077, 078A,

078B, 080, 081, 082, 083, 084, 085, 086, 087, 088, 089,
090, 114, 115A, 120, 121, 122, 123, 124A, and 124B.

(iv) West Bend Court lots (Block 4405B) 115B, 118, and 119.
(v) Witherbee Court lots (Block 4405B) 023, 025, 026, and

027.

(b) Initial appointment shall be for a two-year term.

(6) At-Large Representation District:

(a) Initial appointments shall be one appointment for two-year term
and one appointment for one-year term

3. Duties of the board:

a. Advise the town council on matters concerning the operation of the municipal
service district.

b. Advice shall include but not be limited to:

(1) Municipal Service District budget.
(2) Municipal Service District tax rate.
(3) Requirements for maintaining or improving the ecosystem of the lakes,

for recreational purposes, not to meet town storm water management
requirements.

(4) Proper maintenance and repair of dams located in the municipal service
district.

(5) Lake use policies.
(6) Lake shore and dam improvements for lake access by all residents and

property owners of the municipal service district.
(7) Contract review and recommendations to the Town Manager or Town

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

10 

Council (Town Manager or Town Council based on authority assigned to 
the Town Manager). 

c. Board Meetings:

(1) Board shall meet a minimum of four times annually.
(2) Board meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the open meetings

laws of North Carolina.
(3) Conduct of meetings shall be in accordance with the same policies

adopted by the Town Council for the conduct of Town Council Meetings
which is currently the book, Suggested Rules of Procedure for a City
Council by A. Fleming Bell, II of the North Carolina Institute of
Government, as amended by the Town Council.

(4) Agendas and minutes of board meetings shall be available to the public
in accordance with the public records laws and by the same means as
other board and committee meeting minutes and agendas are made
available to the public.

E. Funds:

1. Authorized uses of public funds (Municipal Service District Funds):
a. Maintenance of the public dams and lakes as a water resource development

project.
b. Maintenance of public dams as required to meet or maintain state standards of

earthen dams.
c. Repair of public dams as required to meet or maintain state standards of earthen

dams.
d. Actions necessary to maintain or improve lake ecosystems.
e. Projects to maintain or improve user access to the lakes for recreational and/or

sporting purposes.
f. Acquisition of real property, easements, and rights-of-way for purposes of

accomplishing the uses listed in paragraphs a through d above.
g. Public education and notification of lake and dam use and safety.

2. Sources of service district public funds:

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

11 

a. Ad valorem tax revenues collected based on property values and property tax
rates as set by the Town Council.

(1) Ad valorem property tax rate shall not exceed five cents per $100
property value except when necessary to meet projected Municipal
Service District budget year cash flow requirements.

b. Interest earnings as earned from investments using Municipal Service District
funds.

c. Contributions and donations.
d. Grants.
e. Debt as authorized by the Town Council or as voted by the registered voters of

the town.
f. User Fees as may be recommended by the Municipal Service District Board and

approved by the Town Council, except for the first year of operation the Town
Council may set user fees absent a recommendation from the Municipal Service
District Advisory Board.

g. Other funds that may be authorized and appropriated by the Town Council.

F. Appropriations:

1. No public funds shall be expended from Municipal Service District funds without first an
appropriation by the Town Council.

G. Budgets:

1. The Town Council shall adopt an annual operating budget for the Municipal Service
District which shall first be recommended by the Municipal Service District Advisory
Board.
a. The Board shall submit an annual budget request to the Town Manager by

February 28th of each year.
b. Expenditures must follow the town financial procedures.

2. Municipal Service District capital projects may be included in the town’s capital
improvement plan.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

12 

H. Lake and Dam Use:

1. Use of the lakes and dams of the Municipal Service District is restricted to Lewisville
property owners, residents, and bona fide guests.

2. Anyone using lake facilities does so at their own risk.

3. Operating hours:

a. Operating hours are daily from one hour before sunrise until midnight except that
boating and fishing are permitted only from dawn to dusk.

b. Nuisance noise shall not be permitted at any time.
c. Noise that can be heard more than 150 feet from the source of the noise shall not

be permitted after 10:00 p.m. or one hour after dark, whichever is later.

4. Private docks permitted:

a. Should private docks extend onto Town owned lake property the dock owner
shall apply for and receive an encroachment permit.

b. Docks shall be constructed in such a manner that a portion of the dock shall be
on private property.

c. Docks shall be maintained in such as manner as they are safe and shall not present
a hazard to any user of the lakes and dams.

d. Requestor of encroachment permits shall indemnify the Town of any liability
related to the private or public use of the dock.

e. Failure to properly maintain a dock may result in the Town ordering the repair or
removal of the dock.
(1) If the owner fails to comply with the order to repair or remove, the Town

may remove the dock.
(2) Public costs related to removal of a dock shall be borne by the owner.

(a) The Town shall forward an invoice to the owner requesting
payment of expenses related to the removal of the dock.

(b) Should the Town not receive payment for removal of an unsafe
dock, the Town may place a lien against the related property and

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

13 

collect the fee as unpaid taxes. 

5. Boats permitted:

a. Users may use boats, canoes, and similar craft without internal combustion
engines.

b. Electric trolling motors are permitted.
c. Boaters shall not cause a wake which may interfere with other boaters and users

of the lakes.
d. Boats are not permitted to drift free and must be moored when docked or not in

boating use.
e. All occupants of boats must wear approved (United States Coast Guard) life vests

appropriate for the occupant’s size and weight.
f. Boaters shall not be intoxicated or otherwise impaired.
g. Boaters and other lake and dam users shall remain aware of weather conditions

and shall not place themselves in unsafe situations related to hazardous weather
conditions.

6. Fishing permitted:

a. Fishing is permitted in accordance with North Carolina fishing laws.
b. Fishing is permitted from boats, dams, docks, piers, and shorelines.
c. Fish traps and netting are not permitted at any time.

7. Swimming permitted:

a. Swimming is at the swimmers own risk.
b. Swimmers shall not swim alone, at least one other person must be present and

observing in the event the swimmer encounters difficulty.

8. Hunting with firearms, air guns, pellet guns, and archery not permitted on lake and dam
properties.

9. Open burning on Town of Lewisville owned public property is not permitted.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

14 

10. Dumping of materials, waste or otherwise, is not permitted on Town of Lewisville owned
public property and town officials shall pursue the harshest civil penalties against those
individuals discovered dumping such materials.

11. Diverting lake waters for other uses is not permitted except as approved by the Town
Council.

12. Control of pests endangering the lake ecosystem, hampering the public use of the lakes
and dams, or endangering the public welfare and safety, may be conducted under the
direct supervision of town officials or persons appropriately designated by town officials.

13. Town officials may issue temporary emergency use rules in order to protect safety of life
and property.

14. No individual may place any private sign on Town of Lewisville property located within
the Willow Run Municipal Service District.

I. User Permit:

1. Any resident or property owner of the Town of Lewisville may use the public lakes, dams,
and shorelines provided they possess the appropriate user permit.

2. User permits shall be issued upon request and payment of the published user fee.

a. Permits may be issued only to town residents/property owners for personal use
excluding organizational entities.

b. Permits are family permits in that any family member residing at the address of
the permit holder may use the permit, otherwise the permit is non-transferable

c. Permit holders shall accompany bona fide guests using the lakes and dams.

(1) Bona fide guests are non-residents or non-property owners of the town
(residents and property owners of the town who desire to use the lakes
and dams are expected to purchase a user permit).

(2) Permit holders are limited to hosting a maximum of five adult bona fide
guests during any one outing.

DRAFT



ORDINANCE 2015020 2023-010 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 

AMENDING CHAPTER 39 OF THE TOWN CODE 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICTS 

 THE WILLOW RUN MUNICIPAL SERVICE DISTRICT 

AMENDMENT 3 CLARIFYING THE SEATING OF NEW BOARD MEMBERS 

Ordinance 2002009 - June 13, 2002 
Amendment 1 - Ordinance 2006032 - July 13, 2006 

Amendment 2 - Ordinance 2009035 - October 8, 2009 
Amendment 3 - Ordinance 2015020 - March 12, 2015 
Amendment 4 – Ordinance 2023-010 – March 9, 2023

15 

3. Lost permits shall be replaced upon request and payment of the replacement fee:

a. Replacement fee shall be the original annual fee prorated for time remaining on
the original permit with a maximum fee equal to half the original permit fee.

4. Requests for user permit shall be submitted to the Town Manager or his/her designated
representative.

5. User permit fees shall be annually set and published in the annual operating budget of
the town.

6. Property owners and residents of the Willow Run Municipal Service District shall be
exempted from payment of the annual user fee.

7. Permits shall be valid for one (1) year from the date of issuance.

J. Modifications:

1. This chapter 39 shall not be modified by the Town Council without first conducting a
public hearing.

2. Notice of a public hearing to consider changes to chapter 39 shall be published at least
once in a local daily newspaper having county wide circulation no less than 10 days and
no more than 30 days prior to the public hearing.

3. Notice of a public hearing shall also be posted at the three entrances into the Willow Run
Municipal Service District (Desmond Drive, Falmouth Drive, and Chesterfield Road) no less
than five days prior to the public hearing.DRAFT



RESOLUTION 2023-016 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
EXECUTION OF LEWISVILLE-VIENNA ROAD AND ROBINHOOD ROAD ROUNDABOUT 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, a Capital Project Ordinance for the Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road 
Roundabout project (U-6154) was established and adopted by the Lewisville Town Council on 
July 13, 2019; and, 

WHEREAS, a contract for professional services for the Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood 
Road Roundabout project (U-6154) was awarded to Kimley Horn and Associates of Raleigh on 
September 9, 2021; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council approved a letter of support requesting supplemental funding for 
the Lewisville-Vienna Road and Robinhood Road Roundabout project (U-6154) on February 3, 
2022.   

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL authorizes the Town Manager to sign 
the agreement and related documents for supplemental funding of the Lewisville-Vienna Road 
and Robinhood Road Roundabout project (U-6154). 

Adopted this the 9th day of March 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #10



RESOLUTION 2023-017 OF THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL 
EXECUTION OF GREAT WAGON ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 

WHEREAS, the Town purchased rights-of-way for the Great Wagon Road project; and, 

WHEREAS, the Town Council gave consensus at their July 7, 2022 meeting to give the rights-of-
way property purchased for the Great Wagon Road project by the Town to the North Carolina 
Department of Transportation.   

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE LEWISVILLE TOWN COUNCIL authorizes the Town Manager to sign all 
rights-of-way documents related to the Great Wagon Road project that are to be conveyed to 
the North Carolina Department of Transportation. 

Adopted this the 9th day of March 2023 by the Lewisville Town Council. 

______________________________ 
ATTEST: Mike Horn, Mayor 

_____________________________ 
Dora K. Moore, Town Clerk 

Attachment #11


	03-02-2023 briefing agenda
	01 - IOOTRLIAGPTL - Merrikay lewisville-nomination-
	Staff Report-Budget Amendment-CityVision
	02 - 2023-011 - Ord - Budget Amend - CityVision
	03 - 2023-013 - Res - FCSO Flock camera
	04 - Res 2023-014 - Financials
	05 - 01-27-2023 Council Retreat Minutes
	06 - 02-02-2023 TC Briefing Minutes
	07 - 02-21-2023 Called Meeting Minutes (attorney-client - closed session)
	08 - 2023-015 - Res - Accepting Resignation of Genevieve Athens - LBC
	10 - 2023-010 - Ord - amending charter Willow Run Administration Chapter 39 Town Code
	10 - 2023-016 - Res - LV-Robinhood Rd roundabout supplement
	11 - 2023-017 - Res - GWR ROW documents

	Date: 2/27/2023
	Name of Nominator: Susan Frey
	Contact telephone number: 757-810-6712
	Contact email: smf122704@yahoo.com
	Name of Nominee: Merrikay Brown
	Address of Nominee 1: 7335 Bullard Rd Clemmons 27012
	Address of Nominee 2: 
	Telephone Number of Nominee: 336-766-5842
	Contact email_2: merrikay@triad.rr.com
	Reason for the Nomination 1: 
	Reason for the Nomination 2: Merrikay works tirelessly to promote and preserve the history of Lewisville and Forsyth County. 
	Reason for the Nomination 3:  Her contributions to the town are numerous. The library, Nissen House restoration, promoting the Shallow Ford walk.
	Reason for the Nomination 4: President of the Lewisville Historical Society where meetings include guest speakers who connect the past to the present. 
	Reason for the Nomination 5: Maintaining historical markers program and I'm sure  many other contributions that I don't know about.
	Date received: 
	Presented to Council: 
	Approval Date: 


